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Now comes the Petitioner, William Montgomery, and moves the Court to consider the
transcript of the live testimony of Sandy Houck, Department of Revenue employee and Affiant for
the Respondent. In support of this Motion, the Petitioner submits the affidavit of the undersigned
counsel, James G. Carpenter, and would show the Court the following:

Houck is a 30 year employee of the Department of Revenue, administering or coordinating
the real property taxation functions for the counties. He submitted an affidavit to the
Administrative Law Court (“ALC”) in Montgomery in support of the Assessor’s Motion for
-Summary Judgment (Exhibit A to the Carpenter Affidavit). The ALC ruled for the taxpayer in
Montgomery on cross motions for summary judgment, and therefore Houck presented no live
testimony.

Dotsy, LLC v. Greenwood County Assessor, No. 13-ALJ-17-0061-CC (S.C. Admin. Law
Ct. 2014) addressed the same legal issue, now on appeal in Montgomery. Houck submitted a
nearly identical affidavit in Dotsy (Exhibit B. to the Carpenter Affidavit). Except for some
inconsequential introductory phrases and minor changes to paragraph structure, the two Houck
affidavits are identical, word for word.

In Dotsy, the ALC (a different judge presiding) denied cross-motions for summary
judgment and set the case for trial. Dotsy was tried after the arguments in Montgomery and shortly
before the ALC issued its ruling in Montgomery. At the trial in Dotsy, Houck testified in accord
with his affidavit, but was subjected to cross examination, during which he made many admissions
helpful to the taxpayer. These admissions called into question his assertions in his affidavits,
(Dotsy and Montgomery). After the trial, the ALC ruled for the taxpayer in Dotsy, and the Assessor

did not appeal.



The undersigned counsel for the taxpayer in Montgomery also represented the taxpayer in
Dotsy. Counsel for the Respondent Spartanburg County Assessor also represented the Greenwood
County Assessor in Dotsy.

In his Return to the Petition for Writ of Certiorari, the Assessor quotes five paragraphs
from the Houck affidavit verbatim and refers to two more. The Houck testimonial admissions
undermine the assertions in the affidavits. Because the Assessor’s Return to the Petition for Writ
of Certiorari relies on assertions in Houck’s affidavit that were called into question or contradicted
by Houck’s testimony, Petitioner moves the Court to consider Houck’s testimony from Dotsy in
response to the Houck affidavit. See Partial Transcript dated October 28, 2013, pages 39-87
(“Transcript”) (Exhibit C to the Carpenter Affidavit).

Petitioner respectfully suggests that the testimony of Mr. Houck in Dotsy significantly
alters the effect of his affidavit, submitted both Dotsy and Montgomery. If the Court were to rely
on the affidavit alone, without the complementary and contradictory testimony, the Court will be
denied a full and complete account of Houck’s testimony. The affidavit without the transcript fails
to present a complete and balanced representation of Houck’s testimony.

Finally, Mr. Houck’s full testimony supports the Petitioner’s contention that the
Department established a policy in 1976, but when the statute change in 1979, the Department
simply failed to change its methodology to conform to the critical statutory change. Accordingly,
all the Administrative Law Courts have arrived at the same conclusion: the Department
vmethodology contravenes the plain language of the Constitution and statutes of South Carolina
governing the assessment of agricultural real property.

Houck testified that the Department’s method of taxing Agriculture Use Value real estate

(by using the agricultural use value method to tax the agricultural land and the fair market value



to tax the structures) has been the Department methodology since 1975 or 1976 (Transcript, p. 42,
1l. 10-15).

Houck testified that he had no “written instruction that tells assessors to obtain the fair
market value for agricultural purposes and apply that only to the land, and then assess the structures
at fair market value and then add the two together” (Transcript, p. 44, 1. 23- p. 46, 1. 4). This
admission undermines the contention of the Respondent.

Houck admitted that he had no knowledge of any regulation that required an assessor to
take the fair market value for agricultural purposes and apply that only to the land, and then take
the fair market value of the buildings and add that to the statutory formula (Transcript, p. 46, 11.
15-24). This admission also undermines the contention of the Respondent. |

Houck testified that he had a role in preparing a booklet or handout for continuing
education classes for the county assessors and that they produced such a booklet or handout in
2010. He admitted that the booklet, specifically dedicated to the assessment of agricultural use
real property, did not instruct the assessors to take the statutory fair market value for agricultural
purposes, apply it to the land, and add the fair market value of the structures to that total
(Transcript, p. 47, 1. 14- p. 48, 1. 6). This testimony supports the contention of the Petitioner.

Houck testified, “The assessor would keep two values; one is a use value and one Would
be a market value” (Transcript, p. 59, 1. 13-15). Houck also agreed, “[T]he purpose of having the
two different values is primarily so that if they change it and they build a subdivision on the real
estate, you can do rollback taxes for five years and get the taxes on the fair market value”
(Transcript, p. 59, ll. 16-22). Then the following colloquy took place:

Q: And there is no statute that says that agricultural real property is to be taxed

at fair market value, is there?

A: With that exception noted, yes, I’ll agree.
Q: Well, you don’t — well, except for rollback taxes?

(O8]



g, 10"111(::1] .there’s no statute that says agricultural real property is to be taxed at

fair market value?

A: It’s being taxed at fair market value for agricultural purposes.

(Transcript, p. 60, 1. 2-13). This testimony supports the Petitioner’s contention that agricultural
real property is taxed at agricultural use value, not fair market value.

Houck testified that the Department method, in effect since 1975 or 1976, is based upon
Act 208 of 1975 and Act 618 of 1976 (Transcript, p. 61, 11. 1-4).

Houck admitted that Act 208 of 1975 states that “Agricultural real property which is
actually used for such purposes shall be taxed on an assessment equal to 4% of its fair market value
for such purposes” (Transcript, p 61, 11. 10- P. 62, L. 4) (emphasis added).

Houck testified that Act 618 of 1976 was amended to read “agricultural land which is
actually used for such agricultural purposes . . .” (Transcript, p. 64, 1l. 10-16) (emphasis added).

Houck admitted, “[T]his language, agricultural land being assessed at 4% of its fair market
value for agricultural purposes . . . would be in keeping with the Department’s policy that says
that’s how we value the land but not the buildings” (Transcript, p. 62, 1. 22 — P. 63, 4) (emphasis
added).

Houck admitted that the Department method for assessing and taxing agricultural real
property originated in 1975 or 1976 based on Act 208 of 1975 and Act 618 of 1976 (Transcript, p.
65, 1I. 5-15). He alsc; testified that the “departmental method of assessing and taxing agricultural
real property has been basically consistent since 1976” (Transcript, p. 65, 1. 23- p. 66, 1. 2).

Houck admitted that Act 133 of 1979 amended S.C. Code Ann. § 12-43-220(d)(1)(2) “by

striking the word ‘land’ on line 1 and inserting ‘real property’” (Transcript, p. 67, 1l. 11-25)

(emphasis added). Houck also admitted in 1979, the statutory language changed from agricultural

“land” back to agricultural “real property,” but the Department policy or methodology simply did



not change (Transcript, p. 68, 1l. 1-14). This admission supports one of Petitioner’s critically
important points.

The Assessor and the Court of Appeals relied on Act 199 of 1979 to conclude that
agricultural use value applied only to “land” and not to agricultural “real property.” Houck
admitted that “Act 199 from 1979 was [enacted] priﬁarily to distinguish the timberlands from
croplands . . . because timberland provides different monetary yields from croplands” (Transcript,
p. 84,1.23 —p. 85, 1. 4). This admission undermines the contention of the Respondent.

Finally, Mr. Houck testified extensively about the statute on which the Assessor relies most
heavily, S.C. Code Ann. § 12-37-930:

85
24 Q: Displayed on the screen is Respondent's Exhibit
25 2, which is South Carolina Code Annotated 12-
86
1 37-930 valuation of real property, and it says
2 all property must be valued for taxation at its
3 true value in money. Is that true for
4 agricultural real estate?
5 A: Yes.
6 Q: That agricultural real property is valued as
7 its true value in money, its fair market value?
8
9

A Ttis.

Q: Earlier I thought I heard you testify that fair
10 market value was one concept and fair market
11 value for agricultural purposes was a
12 completely different concept. Isn't that the
13 truth?
14 A: That is correct.
15 Q: But this statute is talking about fair market
16 value?
17 A: Correct.
18 Q: All properties that are valued and taxed at
19 fair market value ---
20 A: Correct.
21 Q: --- have to be taxed at their true value in

22 money, which is the price which the property
23 would bring following a reasonable exposure to
24 the market where both the seller and the buyer
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are willing, not acting under compulsion, are
87

reasonably well informed of the uses and

purposes for which adapted and so on. That's

talking about classic fair market value, right?

Correct.

Which has no application to the taxation of
agricultural real property, which is taxed at
fair market value for agricultural purposes,
right?

9 A: This does have application for agricultural

10
11
12
13
14
15

Q:
A:

16 Q

17
18
19
20
21
22
23

(Transcript, p. 85, 1. 24 —p. 87, 1. 23). This testimony undermines one of the main arguments of

A:
Q:

A:

property because it's got to be appraised at
fair market value.

In order to prepare for rollback taxes, right?

Ag property has two values. One fair market
value for use purposes; one fair market value
for rollback purposes if needed, yes.

And it's taxed at fair market value for
agricultural use value, right?

Correct.

Okay. So the fact that it's valued at its true
value in money, that's for rollback taxes
purposes, right?

That would be one of them, certainly.

MR. CARPENTER: No further questions, Your Honor.

the Respondent.

Petitioner respectfully suggests that if this Court relies on the Houck affidavit without
Houck’s live, sworn testimony that modified and/or contradicted his affidavit, Petitioner would be
denied due process. The essence of due process is fundamental fairness. “Due process is violated
when a party is denied fundamental fairness.” Hipp v. South Carolina Department of Motor

Vehicles, 381 S.C. 323, 324, 673 S.E.2d 416, 417 (2009) citing City of Spartanburg v. Parris, 251

Legal Discussion

S.C. 187,191, 161 S.E.2d 228, 230 (1968).



This Court considered a fact situation very similar to the one of the case at bar in City of
Spartanburg v. Parris, 251 S.C. 187, 191, 161 S.E.2d 228, 230 (1968). The City of Spartanburg
had discharged a police officer. The police officer appealed his discharge. A civil service
administrative body ruled against the discharged police officer b‘ased largely upon an affidavit
from a witness who was untrustworthy and discredited. The police officer appealed to this Court.
This Court ruled that the administrative body’s reliance on a discredited affidavit denied the police
officer fundamental fairness and consequently denied him due process. More particularly, this
Court ruled that the administrative tribunal consideration of the discredited affidavit without giving
the opposing party an opportunity to cross-examine the witness denied the police officer
fundamental fairness and due process. Accordingly, in the case at bar, fundamental fairness and
due process require that this Court not consider a discredited affidavit submitted by the
Respondent, without considering the transcript of that witness’s live testimony that discredits the
affidavit.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays the Court to consider the transcript of Houck’s testimony
from Dotsy v. Greenwood County Assessor in ruling on the Petition for Writ of Certiorari in this
case.

Respectfully submitted,

THE CARPENTER LAW FIRM, P.C.

Tel. (864) 235-1269
Fax (864) 331-3083
Attorney for Petitioner Montgomery
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James G. Carpenter, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and states as follows:

1.

» Department of Revenue employee Sandy Houck submitted an affidavit to the Administrative
Law Court (*ALC”) in Montgomery in support of the Assessor’s Motion for Summary

Judgment (Exhibit A).

. Houck submitted a nearly identical affidavit in Dotsy, LLC v. Greenwood County Assessor,

No. 13-ALJ-17-0061-CC (5.C. Admin. Law Ct. 2014) (Exhibit B). Except for sofne
inconsequential introductory phrases and minor changes to paragraph structure, the two Houck
affidavits are identical, word for word.

Dotsy addressed the same legal issue as in Montgomery, the method of taxation for agricultural
real property.

Dotsy was tried after the arguments in Montgomery and shortly before the ALC issued its ruling
in Montgomery.

In Dotsy, Houpk testified in accord with his affidavit, but was subjected to cross exainination,
during which he made many admissions helpful to the taxpayer. These admissions called into

question assertions in his affidavits.

" In his Return to the Petition for Writ of Certiorari, the Assessor quotes five paragraphs from

the Houck affidavit verbatim and refers to two more paragraphs from the Houck affidavit. The
Houck testimonial admissions in Dotsy undermine the assertions in the affidavits. -

The undersigned counsel fér the taxpayer in Montgomery also represented the taxpayer in
Dotsy. The counsel for the Respondent Spartanburg County Assessor also represented the
Greenwood County Assessor in Dotsy.

I attach the Partial Transcript dated October 28, 2013, pages 39-87 (Exhibit C).



9. If the Court were to rely on the Houck affidavit alone, without the complementary and
contradictory testimony, the Court would be denied a full and complete account of Houck’s

testimony, and Petitioner would be denied due process.

A

Fames G. Ca«éen{'e/r, SC Bar No. 1136

Further the Affiant saith naught.

Subscribed and sworn to before me

thisc A, 77\ day of April, 2017.

%4% AN i @/J// VW

N{)tary Public, State of So Carolix@
My commission expires; 1/ S0
/

10



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
. ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

William J. Montgomery, ) Docket No. 13-ALJ-17-0104-CC
)
Petitioner, )
)
vs., )
) AFFIDAVIT OF
Spartanburg County Assessor, ) SANFORD HOUCK, JR.
, )
Respondent. )
In Re: TMS# 6-68-00-016.00 )

I, Sanford “Sandy” Houck, Jr., after being duly sworn, do hereby make oath and affirm as
follows:

1. I am employed by South Carolina Department of Revenue (“Department”) as the
Special Projects Coordinator for the Local Government Section. I hold a Certified General
Appraiser’s license in South Carolina (CG 723), issued by the Real Estate Appraiser’s Board of
the South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, and I have been with the
Department of Revenue for over 35 years in the Local Government/Property section.

2. In my capacity as Special Projects Coordinator, I am authorized to make this
Affidavit on behalf of myself and on behalf of the Department. Further, I make this Affidavit
from my own personal knowledge based on the experience I have gained in over 35 years with
the Department.

3. The Department was created to, among other things, administer and enforce the
revenue laws of the State of South Carolina [S.C. Code Ann. § 12-4-10.] The Department is
required to formulate and recommend legislation to enhance uniformity, enforcement, and
administration of the tax laws, and to secure just taxation and improvements in the tax system.
[Id at § 12-4-520.] The Department may make rules and regulations — consistent with statutory
law — to aid in the performance of its duties.

4. In addition to these general duties, the Department oversees county taxation
matters, [Id at § 12-4-520.] The Department is required to call meetings of all county assessors
to provide instruction as to the law governing the assessment and taxation of all classes of
property and must formulate and prescribe rules to given assessors and county boards of tax
appeals in the discharge of their duties. The Department must advise and direct assessors and
county boards of tax appeals regarding their duties. [/d.]

5. Moreover, the Department may issue determinations directing county officials to
comply with South Carolina law relating to the valuation, assessment, or taxation of property.
[Ild at § 12-4-535.] Additionally, the Department is required to prepare manuals, guides, and
other aids for the equitable assessment of all properties. [/d. at § 12-4-560.]

PLAINTIFF'S
EXHIBIT

PENGAD-Bayanne, M. ).

11




6. Pursuant to its statutory duties and authority, the Department, as the agency
charged with interpreting, administering, and executing South Carolina’s tax laws, has
established and applied an .interpretation of the statutes and regulations governing the valuation
of agricultural real property.

7. In determining the value of agricultural real property, as defined by section 12-43-
230, the Department has interpreted the South Carolina Code to provide two components to the
total taxable value.

8. The first component is the agricultural land, which must be valued according to
the productive earning capacity of the soil, as stated in section 12-43-220(d)(2)(A).

8. The Department has interpreted the constitutional provisions and statutes
governing agricultural real property valuation as requiring county assessors to determine the fair
market value of any structures located on the agricultural real property, utilizing valuation
methods applicable to structures located on all real property, including but limited to section 12-
37-930. The fair market value of any structures comprises the second component of the total
taxable value.

9. Thus, under the Department’s interpretation, the taxable value of agricultural real
property is to be determined by valuing both the agricultural land, pursuant to the methods
outlined in section 12-43-220(d)(2)(A), and any structures located on the agricultural land.
Under the Department’s interpretation, the value of any structures located on the agricultural
land is added to the value of the agricultural land in order to determine the total taxable value of
the agricultural real property.

10.  Further, this position has been the Department’s consistent interpretation since the
statutory enactment of agricultural use values by Act 208 in 1975, as expanded by Act 618 in
1976.

11. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 4 of Title 12, the Department has
conveyed its interpretation to the county asséssors.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.

Sanford Houék, Jr. v

SWORN and subscribed to before me
is \3‘2"day of July, 2013.

Notary Public for South Carolina

My Commission Expires: _Y10/2. o Y
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW COURT

Dotsy, LIL.C, )
) Docket No. 13-ALJ-17-0061-CC
Petitioner, )
)
vs. ) AFFIDAVIT OF
' ) SANFORD HOUCI, Jr.
Greenwood County Assessor, )
)
Respondent. )
)

[, Sanford “Sandy” Houck, Jr., after first being duly sworn, do hereby make oath and

affirm as follows:

L. [ am the Special Projects Coordinator for the Local Government Scction of the
South Carolina Department of Revenue (“Department™). 1 hold a Certified General Appraiser’s
license in South Carolina (CG 723), issued by the Real state Appraiser’s Board of the South
Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, and I have been with the Department
of Revenue for over 35 years in the Local Government/Properly section, In my capacity as
Special Projects Coordinator, I am authorized to make this Affidavit on behalt of myself and on
behalt of the Department. Further, I make this Affidavit from my own personal knowledge.

2. The Department was created to, among other things, administer and enforce the
revenue laws of the State of South Carolina. [S.C. Code Ann. § 12-4-10.] The Department is
required to formulate and recommend legislation to cnhance uniformity, enforcement, and
administration of the tax laws, and to secure just taxation and improvements in the tax system.
[ld. at § 12-4-310.] The Department may make rules and regulations—consistent with statutory

law—to aid in the performance of its duties.

3. n addition to these gencral duties, the Department oversees countly taxation
matters. [Jd. at § 12-4-520.] The Department is required to call meelings ol all county asscssors
to provide instruction as to the law governing the assessment and taxation of all classes of
property and must formulate and prescribe rules to govern assessors and county boards of tax
appeals in the discharge of their duties. The Department must advise and direet assessors and
county boards of tax appeals regarding their dutics. Morcover, the Department may issue
determinations directing county officials to comply with South Cavolina law relating to the
valuation, assessment, or taxation of propertly. [/d. at § 12-4-535.] The Department is required to
prepare manuals, guides, and other aids for the equitable assessment of all properties. [fd. at §
12-4-560.]

4. Pursuant to its statutory dutics and authority, the Department, as the agency
charged with interpreting, administering, and executing South Carolina’s  tax laws, has
~established and applied an interpretation of the statutes and regulations governing the valuation

of agricultural real property.
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5. In determining the value of agricultural rcal property, the - Dcp"utmcnt has
interpreted South Carolina Code Annotated scction 12-43-220 to mean that agricultural land,
which comprises onc component of agricultural real property, must be valued according to thc
productive carning capacity of the soil, as stated in scction 12-43-220(d)(2)(A). In oxder fo
determine the total taxable value of agricullural real property, the Department has interpreted the
constitutional provisions and statutes governing agricultural real property valuation as requiring
county asscssors to determine the fair market value of any structurcs located on the agricultural
real property, utilizing valuation methods applicable to structurcs located on all real properly.
Thus, under the Department’s interpretation, the taxable value of agricultural real properly is to
be determined by valuing both the agricultucal fand, pursuant to the methods outlined in scclion
12-43-220(d)(2)(A), and any structures located on the agricultural land, Under the Department’s
interpretation, the value of any structures located on the agricultural land is added to (he value of
the agricultural land in order to determine the total taxable valuc of the agricultural real property.
Further, this position has been the Depattment’s consistent interpretation since the statutory
enactment of agricullural use values by Act 208 in 1975, as expanded by Act 618 in 1976,

l/;\

FURTHER AFTIANT SAYETH NOT / ’)
Lo Ll

SWORN and subscribed to before me
this 3% day of May, 2013,

o T Rpote
No\tcny Public for South Carolina
My Commission Expircs: v/ 10/20\8
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CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

3 PARTIAL TRANSCKIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol. 1
Page 39 !
1 A: No. ' ~
2 MR. STEVENS: No further guestions for the witness. %
3 THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. §
4 Anything else, Mr. Carpenter? §
5 MR. CARPENTER: No. %
6 THE COURT: Thank you very much. You may be %
7 excused. Thank you, sir. All right. Mr. §
8 Stevens, I understand you have another witness. §
9 MR. STEVENS: Yes, ma'am, we do, one more, Sandy §
10 Houck. %
11 THE COURT: Mr. Houck, would you please come forward §
12 . to our witness chair and raise your right hand. %
13 I'll ask the court report to administer the §
14 oath or affirmation to you. %
15 SANFORD "SANDY" HOUCK, JR., being duly sworn, @
16 testifies as follows: ;
17 THE COURT: Please have a sit and answer questions E
18 Mr. Stevens has for you.
19 MR. HOUCK - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. STEVENS:
20 Q: All right. Mr. Houck, just some preliminary |
21 questions. Just please state your full name
22 for ué today. §
23 A: Sanfofd Houck, Jr. é
24 Q: And do you hold any certifications issued by §
25 the State of South Carolina®? lNIFF’S

U B e ST POt A LT e N o S R D g L i M T Y A P oL Py SO VOt Ty

EXHIBIT

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
{803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
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CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol.

10
11
12
13
14

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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Page 40
Yes, sir. I'm a certified general real estate
appréiser. '
Tell us a little bit about what you have to do
to get that certification.
A lot of experience appraising property. There
are a certain number of hours of classroom work
you've got to have to become certified general.
Okay. Once you get that certification, what
does it allow you to do?
Certified generals in South Carolina -can
appraise any type of property, no matter value

or size.

'Okay. How long have you held that designation?

I believe we got our designations, most of
these folks at DOR in '91, 1991.

So. your having mentioned DOR, let me ask you a
few questions about them. Are you employed by
the Department of Revenue?

I am, yes, sir.

And howAlong have you been employed there?
Total full time and part time, 43 &ears.
Without going through all of the positions you
held there, generally can you tell us what you
did there iniﬁially and how you ended up in

your current position today?

P B D P Wz Y P At

1 3 L £ 4t o % e 4 N8 0 w1t 2 e B

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
{803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
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CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol. I

10
11
12
13 A:
14
15
16 Q:
17
18
19 ‘A
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 41
I was a field appraiser for 26 years. I was

office manager for about ten, and I was the

division administrator of the property section

pevpeTCrEm—

for three or four years.

Okay. In your roles, in your various roles,
did you have occasion to become knowledgeable
of how one values agricultural real property?‘
Yes, sir, we have. | é
Is there a, from your éoint of view, an
administrative policy that the Department of
Revenue has as to how one values agricultﬁral i
real propérty?

A -- I wouldn't -- I wouldn't -- no, sir, I
wouldn't say we've got an administrative

policy.

Do you have a method by which you typically
advise assessors on how to value agricultural
real property?

We do.

eere o e An i roen S 31 ras 81 5 & s 1 o

And what would that be?

e

Well, the method would be that at least the

PP e ey

statutes spell out how we arrive at an
agricultural use value for land. To that, as
an appraiser, you would add the valuation of

the buildings that are used for farm purposes,

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800} 822-0896

17



CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

' PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol. I
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10
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14
15
16
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20
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22
23
24
25
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12.

Aériculturél purposes. So the two together
would be the value that would be what we would
tell the counties -- that would be at leaét the
précess to use to value agricultural real
property.

Based on what you know of this éaSe) is that
the ﬁethod that has been applied to the
valuation of the taxpayer here téday?

It appears to be, yes, sir.

All right. Do you know how long the position
that you've advanced, that is, value of the
structures plus the land, do you know how long
that's been the administrative policf of the
Department of Revenue? .

I know it's been the policy since 1975 and '76.

Okay. During that time beriod, are you aware

"as . to whether that policy has been changed by

the Department of Revenue?

MR. CARPENTER: He keeps using the word policy. The

witness testified there was no policy, just a

method.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Q:

Are you aware how long the method that you have

told the Court about has béen used by the

. Department of Revenue and has there been any

Page 42
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change in that method?

The method has been the same since I think use
values came about. To say there were any
changes, there's certainly been some statutory
tweaks, if you will, but the method itself has
not changed.

Have you conveyed that method to the assessors
around the state?.

We have.

Are you aware of whether or not there's
compliance with that method with assessors
around the state?

Without going to each 46 counties, I can't say.
But I have at least checked a number of them
over the years, and everybody uses the method

that we suggested.

‘Okay. In your positions with the Department of

Revenue, have you ever had occasions to teach
courses on valuing of agricultural real
property?

I have.

And in your teaching of thpse courses, what do
you tell your students on how to value
agricultural real property?

Well, the courses would be designed to give

Page 43
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‘them at léast some background as to how the
values came about for land purposes. We may go
into the intricacies of how you value each
acre. Certainly when you look at that, that's
the valuation of the lahd, and it's actually
clarification, a regulation, if you will, that
is provided to every asseséor, the value of the
land. To that, of course, are any agricultural
buildings, any structures on there that are
associated with the agricultural property would
be added to the land value.

And to be sure I understand, that's the method
that you tell the assessors across the state;
is that correct?

It would be the method I've said for many
years, yes, sir.

And that's been the method adoﬁfed by the
Department of Revenue?

Yés, sir.

STEVENS: No further questions.

THE COURT:. All right. Thank you. Would you please

MR.

answer any gquestions Mr. Carpenter may have for
you. Mr. Carpenter, your witness.
HOUCK - CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. CARPENTER:

Mr. Houck, in your testimony, you distinguished

imrr e ma————
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betwgen a policy of the department and a

method. Did I hear that correctly?

A H b g s £ 04¢ ramnn fmbmrsas e 0o & f

I may have used the term policy.

You used the term method. You said it was not
a policy. 1Isn't that right?

I think I did at the end, yes, sir.

And what is the difference between a policy and
a method?

I'm not sure I really know.

Does a policy have to get published and ' !

publicized? K
I don't -- I wouldn't know. h
Does it have to ge£ approved by the General : i
Assembly? |
I would not know. e : - | i
Why did you reject the term policy in favor of H
the term method then?

Well, to me they would be somewhat

gy

interchangeable but method may be the right --
a methoa to me.would be how you do somethiﬁg.
And a policy would be written instructions?

I don't know what policy really means.

Do you have a written instruction that tells
assessors to obtain the fair market value for

agricultural purposes and apply that only to

ppm——
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the land and then assess the structures at fair
market value and then add the two together? Do
you have anything in writing like that?

Not to my-knowledgg.

Does the Department make rules and regulations
with relation to the assessment of real
property?

We do.

But you haven't made one that addresses the
issue we're talking about in this case, right?
A policy?

A rule or regulation.

We do have some regulations dealing with ag
values.

Do you have any regulations that say that you
take the fair market value for agricultural
purposes, which is from the statute, apply that
only to the land and then take the fair market
value of the buildings and add that to the
statutory formula?

In those exact words, not to my knowledge.

Do you have anything close to that?

I'm not sure, but I don't know we have anything
that specifiéally says that;

Now, the Department has a statutory duty to

Nl ey s e =t s il st 50 bt e e .
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provide edﬁcation and training to the assessors
of the various counties in relation t§ real
property tax; is that right?

Yes, sir. |

And you have seminars from time to time?

We do.

Let me ask you about a couple of exhibits that
we've admitted, Exhibits 5 and 6. Exhibit 5 we
believe is a publication that was handed out at
a training seminar for assessors. Is that what
that truly is?

It looks like a continuing ed class that was
provided to assessors.

And do you participate in those continuing ed
classes? |

I do.

Did you have a role in preparing that.booklet

or handout?

.I would have.

bo you remember it specifically?

2010, I remember we worked on agricultural
valuation publication.

Can you look at that and see if there's
anything in there that says that an assessor is

to take the statutory formula, apply that only

oy w—
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to the land, and then take the fair market
va;ue of the buildings, add the two together
and assess the prbperfy that way?

I doubt that it says that exactly.

Does it say something close to that?

I don't think it does.

You want to take a look?

» o » o0 »

It may takg a while.

MR. CARPENTER: Beg the Court's indulgence for that.

THE COURT: Certainly. |

A: I don't see anything specifically for that.
Could I at least add something%

Q: No, not unless it's a question I'm -- no.
Well, I'll let the Court make that deciéion but
that's what ---

A: Well, I'm reading out of the book, and you
asked me if there's anything in here.

Q: ‘Well, if it relates to-my question. ‘I guess,

I mean, the judge is going tdlhave to ans&er

that. I'm not the judge. But what I asked you

was a specific questién about whether that book

said that assessors are to take the statutéry

Page 48

formula, apply it only to the land and then add "

to that the fair market value of the buildings,

' that was the question. And your answer was

sl o wmrn 't trerd
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1 ‘ nothing like that, but then you wanted to make
2 another comment. TIs it related to the
3 question?

4 MR. HOUCK: I think it is, Your Honor, but it's
5 actually ---

6 THE COURT: Well, go ahead and answer ---
7 MR. HOUCK: --- a statute. 1I'm just reciting a
8 statute. It's listed in here.

9 THE COURT: Well, go ahead and answer it and if it's

10 admissible we'll ---

11 A: All right. It says when applicable to land

12 used for the growth of timber and i£ talks

13 about the fair“magket value. It refers to land
14 only for timber. And it's another refgrence in

15 here for ---

16 MR. CARPENTER: Can I approach the witness?

17 A: --- land only to open land. 1It's actually

18 ' underlined. |

19 Q: Can I take a look at that, sir?

20 A: Certainly.

21 Q: Is this the section you're talking about on
22 page 172 . |

237 A: I can't see the page number, but I think that
24 . is the section.

25 Q: When applicable to land used for growtﬁ of

Page 49
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_ Page 50
timber; is that whét you're talking about?
Right.

Now, land used for the growth of timbe? would'.
be one kind of agricultural real property,
right?

Real proper#y is composed of two units
normally.

And what are those two units?

Land and structufeé or buildings.

Attached to the land?

Typically, yes.

So land used for the growﬁh‘of timber would be
a subset of agricultural real property; is that
a fair statement?

It would be.

And the definition of land is different from

the definition of real property. I think

that's a fair statement, isn't it?

That's a fair statement.

I'm going to ask you something similar to what
I askedAﬁhe last wifness. Are you familiar
with Petitioner's Exhibit 6, South Carolina
Property Tax? |

I've seen the publication, yes, sir.

'Have you consulted it?

e ete emerts oo Ans namdemn o
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Typically not.

What is the purpose of this publication?

"I would assume to give guidance to the citizens

in South Carolina as to South Carolina property

tax.

Well, it's not distributed to citizens, is it?

Sir?

It's not distributed to citizens, is it?

I don't know who it's distributed_to.

Isn't it distributed to all the assessors?

I'm not sure we've sent that to the assessors.
Is it on the Department's website?

I really don't know.

Isn't there a link to it?

I have not looked lately.

Isn't there a link to it on the Department's
website?

Maybe so. Here, I'll let you find it.

Let me ask you about something on page one, ask
if you're familiar with that. It says
Caléulation of Tax, paragraph C, and then below
that 1, real property, othef than agiicultural
real property and property subject to a
negotiated fee in lieu of taxes, is appraised

to determine fair market value. Agricultural

N et hlbm mierete 1o 10 e due s

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (B800) B822-08386

27



" CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol. I

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

10’

P O p 0O W

uses that exact term.

Page 52
real property is not appraised to determine -
fair market value, is it?
Well, it is appraised at fair market valug.
Would you agree that this says real property
other than agricultural real property is
appraised to determine fair market value?
That's what it says, yes, sir.
And why is -- why does it say that real
property other than agricultural real property
is appraised? ;
I have no idea. I didn't wriée it.
Do you know if there is a statute that says the
same thing, that real property other than
égricultural real property is appraised?

I'm not sure whether there's a statute that

All right. There's a statute that's referenced
right at the end of that sentence,~12—43—217;
ﬁo you know if that says -- if that statute- |
says those exact same words?

I don't.

Did you submit an affidavit in this case?

I did, yes, sir. |

Did you prepare it{yourself?

I did. | . | ]

Semtn e e e 1 e A
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MR. CARPENTER: It's marked as the next exhibit.

Q:
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- We've marked your affidavit aé Exhibit 7, and

2006.

Page 53

I have a copy of your affidavit in which I've
highlighted a number of phrases. Would you
take a look at that and see if that's your
affidavit-you submitted in this case?

Yeah.

it says that you've been with the Department
for 35 years or more. It says that you héve a
capacity called special projects coordinator.
What is a -- is that your main job title?
Today? Yesr

What do you'meén by today yés?

That's the way, at least I am known as a
special projects coordinator today.

Is that the only thing jou're known as ---
Today? Yes, sir. '

All right. What about yesterdaf?

I've been special projects coordinator since -~
really since_I retired.

When was that?

Do you work a 40 hour week?
I do not.

How many hours a week do you work?

e B P o g oy S e ey Y P Pyt P Sy O S E e
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I typically work 27 to 30 hours.

What are your duties as special projeéts
coordinator?

Most anything that comes up, teaching classes,
answering the telephone, just about anything
that c&mes about.

In your affidavit, paragraph two, you say the
Department may make rules and regulations
consistent with statutory law. Have you
participated in the making of ruleé and
regulations?

No, I would answer no to that.

Well, do you know whether it's important for
the Department to make rules and regulations
that are based upon the statutory law and not
anything else?

I would agree with that.

And is it important that théy not be
inéonsistent with the statutory law?

I would agree with that. |

In paragraph three you say that the Department
is required to prepare manuals, guides, énd
other aids for the equitable assessment of all
properties, and you cite a statutory reference.

Is that true, is the Department required to .

P IRy VS oA P ¥ W P o
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prepare manuals, guides, and other aidéifor the
equitable assessment of all properties?

That is oﬁe of their duties.

Okay. And would you agree that Exhibits 5 and
6, the material from the seminar called
Valuation of Agricultural Property in South
Carolina and-this book called South Carolina
Property Tax are part of the fulfillment of
that statutory duty to prepare manuals; guides,
and other aids for the equitable asséssment of
all propérties? A

Yes.

Now, in these duties of preparation and
advising éssessors and so on, is it important
for the Department to follow the statuﬁory
changes reiated to taxation laws? |

Yes.

Would you agree that the code requires; Section
12-43-220, that agricultural land mustrbe

véiued according to the productive earning

‘capacity of the so0il?

Do I égree with that statement?
Well, let's look at paragraph five of your
affidavit. I'm not trying to trick you here.

In determining the value of agricultural real

S A Sy
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property, the Depaftment has interpreted South
Carolina Code Annotated Section 12-43-220 to
mean that agricultural land, which comprises
one cqmponent of agricultural real property and
must be valued according to the productive
earning capacity of the soil as stated in 12-
43-220(d) (2) (a) . Would you agree that that
testimony is true?

I would, yes.

In the next sentence, you say that, In order to

determine the total taxable value of

"agricultural real property, the Department has

interpreted the constitutional provisions and
statutes thaﬁ govern agricultural real property
valuation. Let me stop right there. 1Is there

a constitutional provision that governs

~agricultural real property valuation?

Well, I don't know that it is a constitutional
——'it probably is part of the Constitution and
it tells us that agricultural real property
gets four percent assessment ratio. I ﬁhink it
is there. . |
And it's agricultural real property that's used
for such purposes, right?

Correct.

[P SS ]
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* That would be correctﬂ

~isn't that right?

Page 57
And that's.in the Constitution? It is. I'm

not trying to trick you.
Okay. I'm going to assume so.
Okay. But you say that you interpret those as

requiring county assessors to determine the

agricultural real property utilizing valuation
methods applicable to structures located on all
real property; is that right?

That would be correct, yes.

W)

it i i v a1 whonnt m o 1t e e 27w

Now, real property other than agricultural real ;
property is assessed and taxed at fair market
value; isn't that right?

Well, agricultural real property is also taxed.

bsone v Tk 22

Well, that wasn't my question. My question is

agricultural -- my question is real property

other than agricultural real property is

a1 ot w42 8

assessed at fair market wvalue?

Houses, business locations, that sort of thing, :
it's all assessed at fair market value? |
Correct.

But agricultural real properﬁy is assessed at .

fair market value for agricultural purposes;

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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. assessed at the statutory formula called fair
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-Correct.
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Page 58

That's the wording in there, yes.

But the Department has taken the interpretation

fair market value of the structures located on
agricultural land is added to the value of the
agricultural land, right?

Correct.

And in your view, the agricultural land is

market value for agricultural purposes, right?
Rephrase that, if you would.

All right. 1I'll be happy to. Agricultural
land in the Department's view is assessed and

taxed at the formula known as fair market value

Okay. And there's a statute that says that
agricultural real property is to be assessed
and taxed at fair market value for agricultural
purposes; isn't that right?

Cdrrect.

And there is no statute that says that
agricultural real property is'to be assessed
and taxed at fair market value,"is there?

I thought that was the same question.

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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No.

Rephrase that one if you will.

Okayﬁ

I'm sorry.

There's no statute that requires that
agricultural real proferty is assessed and
taxed at fair market value?

That would not be a true stateﬁent.

Okay. Can you point me to a statute that says
agricultural real property is to be assessed
and taxed at fair market value?

It is taxed at fair market vaiue. We keep two
values. The assessor would keep two values;
one is a use value and one would be a market
value. | |

Okay. And the purpose of_having the two
different values is pfimarily so that if they
change it and they build a subdivision on the
real estate, you can do rollback taxes for five
yéars and get the taxes on the faif markét
value? | |

That would be correct.

But as long as it remains agricultural real
property, it is assessed and taxed at fair

market value for agricultural purposes?

et 5 e o e et Ao 1o e e s
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Correct.
And there is no statute that‘says that
agricultural real property is to.be taxed at -
fair market value, is there?
With that exception noted, yes, I'll agree.
Well, you don't -- weli, exéept for rollback
taxes?

Okay.

.Then there's no statute that says agricultural

real property is to be taxed at fair market
value? |

It's being ta#ed at faif market value for
agricultural purposes.

Now, in the last sentence in your affidavit you
reference a couple éf different acts.

Yes, sir.

One of them is Act 208 of 1975 and one is Act
618 of 1976.

Right.

And you said in your'prior testimony when Mr.-
Stevens was questioning you, you said that the
Departmenﬁal policy, as you deséribed it, had .
been in effect, as far as you knéw, since 1975
or 1976; is that right?

Yes, sir.

PO p——: -y
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1 Q: - So is it fair to say that probably the
2 Departmental policy is based on Act 208 of '75
3

and 618 of 19767

A: That would be correct.

o>

5 MR. CARPENTER: Tender to the Court Exhibit 7, his
6 affidavit.

7 THE COURT: Thank you, sir, Exhibit 7.

8 (Petitioner's Exhibit Number 7 was admitted into

9 evidence.)

10 Q- I'm putting up on the screen a copy of Act-208 E
11 from 1975, I show you 1975, and this relates to %
12 the classification of property and a statewide g
13 property equalization program; is that right? E
14 A: Yes, sir. 3
15 Q: Was this the beginniné statute that tried to %
16 equalizé‘property taxes throughout the state? %
17 A: It was. | §
18 Q: And you remember that #ct? E
19 A: I was there when it was passed. I cannot ﬁell %
20 you I remember all the sectiéns in it. é
21 Q: I'm not going to give.you a pop quiz'on it. %
.22 There is one section I'd like to ask you about %
23 A though. Section 2, parégraph d, and it says, %
24 Agricultural real property which is actually %
25 - used for such purposes shall be taxed on an E
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assessment equal to four percent of its fair

market value for such purposes. That's what

that says, isn't it?

A: Yes, sir.

[ SEBeT

Okay. And then it goes through and there are
lots of qualifications to be able to get this;
is that right?

Right.

Because it is favorable tax treatment?

Very much. |

It's a tax break for_the farmers, right?

I would assume so.

And if they had to pay taxes on the fair market

e,

value of their property, they might go under, : K
right?

A: I donft know..

Q: Okay. |

MR. CARPENTER: Your Honor, we wQuld‘offer Act 208
O0f 1975 as the next exhibit.

THE COURT: 208, any objection, Mr. Stevens?

MR. STEVENS: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Petitioner's Exhibit 8; Act
208 of 1975. | |

(Petitioner's Exhibit Number 8 was admitted into

evidence.)
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Page 63

Now the next thing that you've referenced ih
your affidavit was Act 618 of 1976; is that
right? |

Yes.

And by a stroke of good fortune, I had 618 of
1976. Can you see that?

I can't yet, no, sir.

Okay. 1976, Act 618.

Okay;

Right? -

Yes, sir.

And this is to provide, to further provide for
assessment of agriéultural real property; is

that right?

"Yes, sir.

That's at the_top of the second page, actually
page 1646 in the Acts and Joint Resolutions.
Now, Act 618 made‘a change in wording from the
prior act; would you agree with that?

I'd have to look at both side by side.

Okay. ‘

And that would be in Section 5 of both acts?
Well, in the firét -- in the earlier act, 208
of 1975, it's on thé second page of the

printout, Section d on the left halfway down,

Eympat
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1 page 250 in the Acts and Joint Resolutions. |

2 A:‘ Okay. , : | !
3 Q: Do you have it there? ;

4 A: I'm looking at 208. i

5 Q: Okay. 208 says agricultural réal property

6 which is actually used for such purposes shall

7 be taxe& on an assessment equal to four percent

8 of fair market value for such purposes, right?

9 A: | Right. :
10  Q: And if you look over here at Act 618, 1976, it '
11 séys that that Section 2(d) is amended to read
12, agricultural land which is actually used for
13 such agricultural purposes'ghall be t;xed on an i
14 assessment equal to four percent of its value
15 -- fair market value for agricultural purposes.

16 a: Correct.

17 Q: . And that's a significant change, isn't it?

18 A: Well, it's a changef I don't know -~--

19 . @Q: Going from agricultural real property to

20 - agricultural land, right?

21 A: It's a change.

22 Q: - And this language, agricultural land Being

23 assessed at four percent of its fair market i
24 value for agriéﬁitural purposes, that would be

25 in keeping with the Department's policy that

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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Page 65

says that's how we value the land but not the

buildings? right?

It says the land would be assessed at four
Okay. And this is 1976?

Okay.

And that's when fhe~Departmen£al policy
originated, right?

That date I'm not positive of.

You testified 1975 or 1976 before, right?
Well, both acts were passéd in those two years,
that is correct.

And the policy is based on those two aqts?
I'm sure there's been some changes along the

way, but basically yes.

MR. CARPENTER: Your Honor, we would offer Act 618

from 1976 as the next exhibit.

'MR. STEVENS: No objection.

THE COURT: Without objection then, Exhibit Number

9.

(Petitioner's Exhibit Number 9 was admitted into

evidence.)

Q:

And thé departmental method of assessing and
taxing agricultural real property has been

basically consistent since 1976, has it not?

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800) B22-0896

41



CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

22
23
24
25

21

e ¥ o ¥

Page 66

Wasn't that your'testimény earlier?

I would answer yes to that.

Now, there was another act called Act 133 from
1979, three years later. Are you familiar with
that act?

1797

1979 Act 133.

Oh, okay. I'm sorry.

So this would be three years after the act from
1976, right? |

Riéht.

Okay. ©Now, it did two things. If you look on

‘the left side of the page, it redefines

agricultural real property, or perhaps defines
agricultural real property, and this is
language we'vé séen before. It was the
enactment of South Carolina Code Section 12-43-

230, For purposes of this article unless

‘otherwise required by the context, the words

agricultural real property shall mean any tract
of real property which is used to raise,
harvest, store crops, feed, breed or manage
livestock or to produce plants, trees, -fowl or

animals.useful to man, including the

" preparation of products raised thereon and so

PO er =y

tiah e

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800) B22-0896

42



CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol.

w N

10
11
12

14
15
16

18
19

21
22
23
24

25

13

17

20 "used for such agricultural purposes shall be

"Right.

_ Page 67
on. It includes but is not limited to such
real property used for agricultural; grazing,
horticulture,'forestry, dairying, mériculture
and so on. You're familiar with Séction 12-
43-230, are yoﬁ not?

Yes, sir.

Okay. So this came about in 1979, or at least
it was amended in 1979; would you agree with
that?

Yes, sir.

aAll right; If you look over at the next page,
which is across the copy I gave you, we find
that this Act 133, 1979, does something else.
Section 2, sﬁbitem (1) of item (d) of Section
12-43-220 of the 1976 Code, as last'amendéd is
further amendéd Ey sﬁriking the word "laﬁd" on
line one and inserting "real property." So
when amended, the subitem shall read the

agricultural real property which is actually

taxed on an assessment equal to four percent of
its fair.market value for such agricultural
purposes. So first the General Assembly said

agricultural real property in 1975, right?

et e ot M 3 e84 A 0 i s e Pt ror 2 A 5o o mad

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0856

43



CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol. I

w' N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

18

Q: Then in 1976 they said agricultural iand,
right?
a: Right.

And that's when the departmental policy was
formed, the departmental methodology is formed,
right?l

A: " Right.
Then in 1979, the General Assembly said no,
we're going to change land back to agricultural
real property, right?

A: Yes.
But the departmental policy didn't change. The
departmental meth'odo.lo'gy didn't change, did it?

A: Not to my knowledge.

MR. CARPENTER: Your Honor, we would offer this as
the next exhibit, Act 133 of 1979.

THE COURT: All right. That would_be Petitioner's
10.

MR. STEVENS: No objection.

(Petitioner's Exhibit Number 10 was admitted into

evidence.) |

Q: ~ Let me ask you one more question about that.
If you look at Acﬁ 133, there's the title on
“thé left side and it said the purpose of the

act, one of the purposes is not only to change

Page 68

[ A St oo M sy
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' Page 69
the definition of agricultural real property
for purposes of taxation, but also halfway down
the paragraph, so as to change the reference
from agricultural land to’agri;ultural real
propert& and to provide property used to
provide free housing for farm laborers. That
was the purpose of this act, the stated purpose

of this act, wasn't it?

" That's the stated purpose, yeah.

It wasn't an accident, was it?

I wouldn't think so.

Now, earlier you mentioned a reference to
timber land in the big book we looked at,
right, the guide?

I did.

All righﬁ. Are you familiar with Act 558 of
1998? 1I'll give you a copy of it.

I'm familiar with it. |

All right. Ahd was this the act in which the

General Assembly made a legislative distinction

between lands growing timber and lands growing
other products, other agricultural products?
Well, I don't -- I'm not sure if it gave a

definition for crops yet. Still reading.

. I'11 help you with it. If you want to look on -

e e f i e a
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YOur screen there, I've got the highlighted

portions I want to ask you about.

Okay.

\-

It references growth of timber, 1§nds for
timber, sale of timber, right?

Right.

And the hext page, it goes to other
agricultural products, agricultural products,
and it distinguishes between other agricultural
products and timber, right?

Right.

Okay. Now, one of the other things that this
act did, if you'd look over at paragraph ﬁ(ii)
on page 4739 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions,
is that it referenced a table from the US -
Department-cf Agriculture. Are you familiar
with that?

I am not. o,

Okay. This references a Table 1, Farm Real
Estate Values. You see the highlighted

portion there?

II do.

Indexés for the average value per acre of land
and buildings as listed in the state. Are you

familiar with that table?
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A:

MR. CARPENTER: Pleas'the Court, we've submitted

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Exhibit 117

MR. CARPENTER: Yés.

THE COURT: Yes.

(Petitioner's Exhibit Number 11 was admitted into

evidence.)

Q:

Page 71
I am not. |
Are you familiar with Table 5 of the same US.
Department of Agricultural ---
I am not, no, sir. .
So you wouldn't know whether the Table 5
references land only?
I would not.
But here, if you read the statute; the General
Aésembly selected the table for the taxation of
agricultural real property that references
avérage vaiue per acre of land and buildings.
Isﬁ't that what the statute says, or the act
says, the highlighted portion on your screen?

That's what my copy says, yes.

both Table 1 and Table 5 attached to our
summary motion judgment earlier, but we offer

this as the next exhibit.

Are you familiar with Act Number 199 of 1979,

which was apparently earlier than Act 558 of

PETR R —r—r

[ O S S P

v k! 2 rot pon' R

P T N

1230 Richland Street / Celumbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896 -

47




CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.

PARTIAL TRANSCRIPT DOTSY, LLC V. GREENWOOD COUNTY ASSESSOR - Vol.

w N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

I'm sorry, 20067

‘Okay, yes.

Pagé 72
1979 -- 1988~
Without seeing it, I'ﬁ not sure.
Okay. Nevér mind. Are you familiar with
what's known as the Soutﬁ Carolina Real

Property Valuation Reform Act passed in 19 --

I am.

Okay. Let me show you a sectiqn of that act.
ﬁow this Act 388 appears to be a very large
act; would you agree with that?

It was, yes, sir.

And one part of it is Part IV called-South
Caroiina Real Property Valuation Reform Act; is

that right? 1I'll put it up here on the screen.

And one of the -- Act 388 had a number of
reforms as far as the taxation of real estate;
is that right?

Correct.

And one of the reforms was that if improvements
or additions were made, then the a#sessors had
to add those to the previous value of the real .
estate; is that right?

Section 1 says that.

All right. And that was a significant change

PP s ]
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in the law, right, or a significant statement
of the law?

I'm not -- I don't know that I'll agree that
it's a change in the law.

Okay. But in any event, this act said that was
the assessor's duty; is that right?

The assessor's duty is to appraise all
property.

Okay. And by appraise, according to this
statute, we mean the process provided by law
for the property tax assessor to determine the

fair market value of real property and.

" additions and improvements to real property,

right?

Correct.

So this looks like the General Assembly is
saying you have to take these additions and
improvements and add them to the value of tﬁe
property, right?

Cofreét.~

But the General Assembly added another
provision specifically related to agriculﬁural
real property, didn't it? Let's look at the
last page of the handout I gave you right Below

the réference to 12-37-3170.

e e > S s 02 011 .
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A:

Q:
MR. CARPENTER: Wé would offer this as the next

MR. STEVENS: ©No objection. ' ' .

THE COURT: With no objection then, Petitioner's

(Petitioner's Exhibit Number 12 was admitted into

evidence.)

MR. CARPENTER: Can I have a couple of minutes to

_ > » Pagé 74 ;
Okay. §
You see it there?

Yes, sir.
Nothing in this article affects'the provisiohs‘

of 12-43-220(d) that define and apply to fair

et a e Am w40 o o 5 D srm o 21 smehy nomim o

market value for agricultural purposes for real
pfoperty in agricultural use, right?

Right.

So the provisions we talked about a minute ago
do not apply to agricultural real property, do
they?

In reading that, that would be the way I wduld

kot &

look at it.
Because the Real Property Valuation Reform Act .1
is all about fair market value, isn't it?

I don't -- I'm not sure that's all it's about.

All right.

exhibit, Your Honor.

Exhibit 12 admitted into evidence.
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look over my notes Your Honor?

THE COURT: Certainly. Take‘your time, Mr.
Carpenter.

Q: My last question is this. Despite all the
statutory changes that referenced agricultural
real property, the one in 1979 that changed
agricultural land back to agricultural real
property, the one that used the USDA table that
used land and buildings and the Real Property
Reform;Act that says agricultural real
property, that nothing in the Real Property
Reform Act affects agricultural real property,
despite all those legislative enactments, the
Department never changed its ﬁethodology for
assessing agricultural real property, did it?

A: Not to my knowledge.

MR. CARPENTER: That's all I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. Mr. Stevens?

MR. STEVENS: Yes, a few on redirect.

-MR. HOUCK - REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. STEVENS:

Q: ‘Mr. Houck, you're awafe,4of course, that the
property that we're loocking at today is for the
tax year 20117

A: Correct.

The statute that you have been asked about

>Page.75

Uy —— T T
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MR. CARPENTER: Your Honor, I would object to

25 .

_ _ , Page 76
significantly is 12-43-220(d). AreAyou
familiar with that statute?

A: I am. |

Q: I'm going to show an overhead, someAlanguage
associated with that statute given that this
was sort of a line of questioning that you were
asked about. On the highlightea portion, jusf
read for us the one that's (d) (1), please.

A: Agricultural real property which is actually
used for such agricultural purposes shall be
taxed on an assessment equal to.

Q:  And then just read the first portion that's
highlighted'under A.

aA: Four percent of its fair market value.

| So if we were to read no further, we wouldn't
have any direction on what is fair market
vaiue; is that correct?

A: We wouldn't.

Can you read for us thé opening part of what is

identified as 2(a) ---

leading there when he reads half the sentence
and leaves off the most important prepositional
phrase.

MR. STEVENS: We will stipulate it says four percent
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of its fair market value for such agricultural

purposes.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Mr. Stevens.

Q:

And then Mr. Houck read 2A, which talks about
fair market value for agricuitural purposes.
Could you slide it just a'little one way.

Oh, I'm sorry.

2A says fair market value for agricultural
purposes when applicable to land used for the

growth of timber.

~All right. Is there, in your understanding of

the method followed by the Department of
Revenue, how dovyog interpret that phrase in
figuring out the valﬁe-of agricultural real
property for agricultural purposes?

The value of the land based on soil
capabilities, the use value, if you will.

All right.

To:thét, yoﬁ‘would add the value of any
structures.

Based on the method and position of the
Department of Revenue, is there anything within
that proﬁision thus far that tells you hoﬁ to
value structures on landé

No.

Page 77
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Q: Is it your understanding that the policy only

tells you how to value the land?
A: That would be correct.

Are you familiar with another statute, 12-37-

9302
A: I am.
Q: All right. Let me put that on the overhead.

MR. STEVENS: We have a multitude of copies, Your
Honor.
THE COURT: That's okay. We can handle it. Thank

you.

. MR. STEVENS: We are, Mr. Carpenter, operating on

the premise that'bills which are before -- or
statutes do not need to be introduced as
evidence and legislative history. Do we need
to enter into evidence the statute?

THE COURT: Well, we can certainly take judicial
notice of it, but I appreciate Mr. Carpenter
giving us those copies because it's ﬁery
difficult sometimes to ferret those out.

MR. STEVENS: Thank you.

Q: Mr. Houck, under just the opening wérds of 12~
37-930, just the first sentehce of first
phrase, would you read that for us, please.

aA: _All property must be valued for taxation.

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 28201
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1 And from that statemehf, is there ény position '
2 from the Department of Revenue as to whether or
3 ‘not structures would fall within the meaning
4 all property?
5 I would think our interpretation would be all
6 property means sﬁructures.
7 The interpretation that the Department has used
8 in valuing agricultural real property, is it
9 the Department's view that the definition of
10 agricultural real property only addressés lanq;
11 is that what you're telling us?
12 No, sir.
13 How would you tell us how agricultural real
14 property is valued under 12-37-930 ana under
15 12-43-2207
16 Well, there's a speciﬁl provision that tells us
17 how &e value the land. For crops or timber,
18 there is a special provision, a special formula
"19 you go through to come ub with'that value.- For
20 appraiéing Suildings, every:appfaiser would be
21 using supposédly market information to come up
22 with values for the structures themselves.
23 Okay. Mr. Carpenter asked you about land, and:
24 I think one of your responses to his question
25 was that land ﬁas a subclass of real property.

A e e e ot o sy ot b o 444
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Q:

Page 80

Is -—-- |
That would be at least a half of it.
There's another document which is an Act 199
Section 23 which -—~ is that one already in
evidence?

CARPENTER: No.

COURT: I don't believe so.
All right. I'm going to ---

COURT: Act 199 of what year?

STEVENS: 1979.

COURT: Okay. The one that's in evidence isiAct
133 of 1979. ‘

STEVENS: Yes, we would like to move that
document into evidence. We're going to be
asking the witness a few questions about it.

COURT: That will be Respondent's Exhibit Number

CARPENTER: Your Honor, I object because when I
asked him about it, he said‘he wasn't familiar
-with it. So he's either becomé familiar
‘magically or something's wrong here becaﬁse I
asked him about this same act and he said he
wasn't familiar with it, so I went on.

Mr. Houck, are you familiar with ---

THE COURT: Excuse me, yeah, I don't remember. I'm

e ey
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19

sorry, I don't remember that. I thought you
asked him about Act 133.

MR. CARPENTER: I did, and then I brought up-Act
199, and he said he was not familiar with it,
and I moved on.

THE COURT: Well, since it was raiéed, I will allow
Mr. Stevens to ask him any questions that are
relevant about it.

(Reépondent's Exhibit Number 1 was admitted into

evidence.)

Q: Yes, andito the extent that you're not familiar
with it, then certainly please féel free to |
tell me that you're not. The document is now A
in evidence. 1I'd like you to look at the first
portion of the document in which the General
Assémblylidentifies what they find. Mr. Houck,
can you tell us .what the first portibn, just
read the first portion in A.

A: It was to amend section -- oh, i'm sorry.

Q: Yeah, Under A.

The General Assembly finds thét a substantial
part of the lands used for the growth of -
agricultural products in this state is in fact
used for the.growth of timber.

Q: Yes, sir. Please go ahead and finish reading

Page 81
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It is.

Page 82
A.
The remainder of land used for the growth of

agricultural products is applied to the growth

1 R91s b A0 t1s o +n & et e o bk im0 b 20 g ]

of many other diverse agricultural products.
Because of this situation, the General Assembly
finds-that the income from timber land shouid
be used to determine the use value of such
lands and income.of lands used to produce other
agricultural products should be used to
determine the use value of those lands.

Is that section consistent with the policy or
the position or £he method being‘qtilized by
the Department of Revenue in advising'folks on :

how to value agricultural real property?

And from that language, how do you believe that
is concurrent or agrees with the position that
the Department advances?

We have used-at least that terminology to value
open land and timber land separatelj based on
the capability of‘it to produce a crop, either
timber or on the other side soybeans and corn,
and thoseAindicated yields per acre are then

basically factored into what we know as a use 3.

value per acre for the land.

—r

———
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Page 83
Q: So has the soil capability method ever been

used to value structures on agricultural real

propefty?

A: Not to my knowledge.

The courses that you've taught, why is it that
there would not be a statement telling the
assessor how to value. the structures on the

agricultural real property?

A: As an appraiser, we don't need to tell them

that they value land and buildings. You would
assume you value both without having to be
told. What we would have told them is the land
has a special valuation not to be confused with
what property would norma;ly'sell for. But we
don't need to tell them how to value real
estate. Most of them are licensed or
certified, and as such they know that there are
two components, one is land and one is
buildings, and to come up with the fair market
value, you have to add fwo.

Q: All right. Thank you.  No further questions.

THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Carpenter?

MR. CARPENTER: Yes.

MR. HOUCK - RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. CARPENTER:-

Q: _The appraisers figure that out for themselves
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when they're dealing with fair market value,

.don't they?

They are -- I mean, they take classes to give
guidance as to how you value real property.
Bgt what you testified to just a minute ago
related to fair market valﬁe._ You said the
appraisers know how to do that. That's fair
market value, right? |

Correct. -

That is not fair market value for agricultural
purposes, which is completely different, right?
I wouldn't agree with that statement, no, sir.
Do &ou agree that fair market value for
agricultural purposes is different from fair
market value?

Yes.

Do you also agree that land is a subset of real
property? | |

I would.

And do you agree that agricultural land is a
subset of agricultural real property?

I would.

And Act 199 from 1979 was primarily to

distinguish the timber lands from crop lands,

. right?

Page 84
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It dealt with timbef land values.

Because timber land provides different monetary
yields from crop lands?
That would be correct.
And there is an annualization and all kinds of
factors that go into it, but what we're trying
to do is getAthe fair rental value of the lands
in some sort of capitélized way, righﬁ?
I'm not sure we used rental as much as did for,
for timber purposes we used a site index that
is used to grow timber.

CARPENTER: Can I have just a minute, Your>
Honor?

COURT: Certainly.

CARPENTER: Was 930 entered into as an exhibit,
the statute ending in 9307?

COURT: Yes, 12-37-930. It doesn't have a

_ number. | |

STEVENS: We are more than happy to enter it as
an exhibit. I think it would be Number 2 for

us.

(Respondent's Exhibit Number 2 was admitted into

evidence.)

Q:

Displayed on the screen is Respondent's Exhibit

.2, which is South Carolina Code Annotated 12-

P ———:

DE

provp T
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-37-930 valuation of real property, and it says

~would bring following a reasonable exposure to

~are willing, not acting under compulsion, are

Page 86

all property must be valued for taxation at its
true value ih money. Is that true foi
agricultural real estate?

Yes.

That agricultural real property is valued as
its true value in money, its fair market value?
It is.

Earlier I thought I heard you testify that fair
market value was one concept and fair market
value fof agricultural pﬁrposes was a
compleﬁely different concept. 1Isn't that the
truth?

That ié correct.

But this statute is talking about fair market
value?

Correct.

All properties that are valued and taxed at
fair market value ---

Correct.

--- have to be taxed at their true value in

money, which is the price which the property

the market where both the seller and the buyer

[P B UV Ty PP A ST WP P P S
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MR. CARPENTER: No further gquestions, Your Honor. |
THE COURT: Thank you very much. Mr. Stevens?

MR. STEVENS: I'm done. No further witnesses.

property because it's got to be appraised at

Page 87

reasonably well informed of the uses and
purposes for which adapted and so on. That's

talking about classic fair market value, right?

e 4t e i 1 3m n  smmn,  m Pemtrno  m nrr &

Correct.

Which has no application to the taxation of
agricultural real property, which is téxed at
fair market value for agricultural purposes,
right? |

This does have ayplication for agricultural
|

fair market value.

In order to prepare for rollback taxes, right?
Ag property has two values. One fair market
value for use purposes; one fair market value
for rollback purposes if needed, yes.

And it's taxed at faif market value for
agriculiufal use value, right?

Correct.

Okay. So the fact that it's Qalued at its true
value in money, that's for rollback taxes

purposes, right?

That would be one of them, certainly.
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